
Regular Meeting of the Town Commission of the Town of Ocean Ridge to be held in the 
Town Hall on Monday, March 2, 1998, 7:00 PM. 
 
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Stamos.  Following the Pledge of Allegiance, 
roll call was answered by the following: 
 
  Commissioner Aaskov  Commissioner Bridges 
  Commissioner Kaleel   Commissioner O’Hare 
     Mayor Stamos 
 
IV. Requests for Additions, Withdrawals, Deferrals, Arrangement of Items 
 
Mayor Stamos advised that a letter had been received from George Rescigno, 5505 N 
Ocean Blvd. Lexington #102, which requested the use of the fire garage to collect items 
which could be sent to help the victims of the tornado disaster in Central Florida.  Mr. 
Rescigno stated that he had spoken to local officials in Kissimmee who advised him that 
they were in need of money, plastic tarp, work gloves, rakes, shovels, trash bags, and 
similar items.  He advised that if the garage could be used for collection, he would 
facilitate the items being brought to Central Florida.  The Town Commission had no 
objection to the use of the fire garage for this purpose. 
 
Mayor Stamos advised that he had a correction to page nine of the minutes of the 
February 2, 1998 meeting.  He stated that he would like to add “that the vocational 
schools need to be protected and that he was in favor of keeping the schools open” to his 
comments regarding Resolution No. 98-05. 
 
Town Manager Lanker requested to move items VI. B, D, and E to the Consent Agenda.  
He added that Resolution No. 98-10 needed to be added to the agenda and suggested that 
it, too, be moved to the consent agenda.  Comm O’Hare advised that he would like to 
discuss item VI. D. 
 
V. Consent Agenda 

A. Minutes 
1. Special Meeting of January 30, 1998 
2. Regular Meeting of February 2, 1998 
3. Special Meeting of February 13, 1998 

B. Reports 
1. Town Manager 

a. Municipal League Meeting 
b. Local Mitigation Strategy 
c. Beach Replenishment Schedule 
d. Ocean Ave. Bridge Schedule 

2. Director of Public Safety 
a. Monthly Activity Report 

 
 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE TOWN COMMISSION HELD ON MARCH 2, 1998 

 2

C. Public Requests 
1. Request to Trim Seagrapes on Dune at 5929 N Ocean Blvd. 

– Bernard Turner representing Ralph Muller 
2. Request to Extend Deadline for Structure Removal as a 

Result of a Partial Release of Unity of Title – Korrine 
Postma, 23 Coconut Lane 

D. Ocean Ridge Resolutions 
1. 98-10;  Adopting and Authorizing the Execution of the 

Interlocal Agreement for Municipal Recycling and Grant 
Management 

 
Comm Aaskov moved to approve the consent agenda as amended, seconded by Comm 
Bridges. 
 
Motion Carried – yea 5. 
 
VI. Public Requests 

A. Discuss the Painting of the Sidewalks for Bridge and Relocating of 
Utility Pole – Inlet Cay Homeowner’s Association 

 
Neil Hamilton, 1 Inlet Cay, advised that during the bridge construction, there had been 
discussion of installing pavers on the bridges, which was ultimately not implemented.  He 
stated that he had surveyed the residents on the island and the majority was in favor of 
painting the sidewalk on the bridge.  He added that the cost would be approximately 
$200. 
 
Mr. Hamilton continued explaining that there is a large, unsightly utility pole that needs 
to be relocated.  Town Manager Lanker stated that the cost would be approximately 
$1200-$1300 for the removal of the pole and some misc. electrical work keeping the total 
for both projects under $2000.  Town Clerk Hancsak advised that there is approximately 
$40,000 remaining in the bridge funds. 
 
Comm Bridges moved to approve the projects plus the removal of the pole on Sabal 
Island in an amount not to exceed $2000 from the bridge funds, seconded by Comm 
O’Hare. 
 
Comm Kaleel advised that he has a problem with the approval of the painting of the 
sidewalks.  He stated that he would agree at this time only because there is no clear 
direction for the total beautification of the Town.  He stated that it would be better for the 
Town to have a plan in place that would answer these questions when they arise.  He 
explained that he felt it would not be in the best interest of the Town to have all of the 
streets looking different. 
 
 
 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE TOWN COMMISSION HELD ON MARCH 2, 1998 

 3

Comm Bridges stated that he agreed in part with Comm Kaleel although he felt that some 
differences created character within the Town. 
 
Roll call was made on Comm Bridges’ motion. 
 
Motion carried – yea 5. 
 

B. Discuss Replanting of Island and Painting Entrance Walls – Ridge 
Harbour Estates Homeowners 

 
Victor Martel, 46 Harbour Dr. S, advised that they were requesting the replanting of the 
small island which has become an eyesore as a result of not being properly maintained.  
He stated that the area is inconsistent with other parts of Town which have beautiful 
landscaping such as the areas near the new bridges.  He commented that it did not 
resemble an entranceway befitting Ocean Ridge.  He showed pictures of the island and 
the walls which he described as overgrown with bushes and shrubs and not structurally 
sound.  He concluded that although he had no solutions in mind for the problem, he 
believes it is a problem that the Town should correct. 
 
Dr. Martel also produced pictures of island planting areas in other communities.  He 
advised that possibly the water meter on Harbour Dr. is non-functional.  He explained 
that the residents want to know if the issue will be pursued and what the funding options 
are. 
 
Comm O’Hare questioned who owns the walls to which Town Manager Lanker replied 
that Palm Beach County owns them.  Comm O’Hare questioned who owns the island 
area to which Town Manager Lanker replied that the Town does.  Comm O’Hare 
commented that when he had originally planted the material, he thought there was going 
to be someone taking care of it.  Town Manager Lanker explained that the Town has been 
doing minimum trimming through its contractor and cut it back extensively in the last 
several weeks. 
 
Dr. Martel advised that he had invited a landscape architect to speak to the Commission 
on this issue to explain what needs to be done.  He added that the curbing around the 
island also needs to be repaired. 
 
Mike Bower, landscape architect from Ed’s Garden Center in Boynton Beach, advised 
that he did not have anything prepared for the meeting, but would be able to answer any 
questions that the Commission may have. 
 
Comm Bridges advised that the planning would come together in Comm Kaleel’s Focus 
2000 meeting.  Comm Bridges stated that the correct plantings were installed originally, 
but there was no maintenance plan implemented.  He suggested that a maintenance 
schedule for the Town be included in the Focus 2000 discussions. 
 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE TOWN COMMISSION HELD ON MARCH 2, 1998 

 4

Betty Bingham, 1 Ocean Ave., advised that the Garden Club originally installed the 
plantings with suggestions from the residents of the area.  She reiterated that the area 
looked fine when planted, but that lack of maintenance has destroyed the island.   
 
Comm Bridges stated that a maintenance plan needs to be implemented and that the 
selection of specific plants is secondary to that plan.   
 
Phil Barlage, 35 Anna St., advised that he has been requesting the Commission to 
consider these problems for a year now.  He suggested that the Commission listen to the 
residents now and beautify the Town as they are requesting. 
 
Claire Ventresco, 12 Hudson, strongly suggested that the Commission allocate funds to 
correct the drainage problem on Hudson Ave. before spending it on additional plantings 
and maintenance of such. 
 
Bernard Ratner, 32 Harbour Dr N, questioned who is responsible for the maintenance of 
the area to which Mayor Stamos advised that he would answer that later in the meeting. 
 
John Holland, 51 Harbour Dr S, advised that many residents spent a lot of time on this 
issue and requested that the Commission formulate a plan to rectify the situation. 
 
Jerry Lower, 2 Harbour Dr N, advised that he was delighted to see so many of the Ridge 
Harbour Estates’ residents present at the meeting.  He explained that in August 1992, 
residents planted the island as it exists now.  He stated that one mistake they made was 
that they planted Firebush which does not withstand the wind on the island.  Another 
mistake, he explained, was that the residents volunteered to maintain the area.  He 
reiterated that he was pleased to see so many neighbors at the meeting with the attitude 
that the area needs to be improved and beautified.  He advised that when the Town 
creates a plan, it will help maintain the character of the entire Town including the 
entrance to their street. 
 
Charlotte Carle, 7 Harbour Dr S, agreed that it was the residents who were originally 
responsible for the project.  She advised that Mr. Lower does his best every week to 
maintain the area, but help is needed from the Town. 
 
Terry Vinas, 50 Harbour Dr S, stated that she believed it was a shame that the residents 
had to be responsible for the maintenance.  She added that the Garden Club should be 
considered an asset to the Town, but not as a group that should be responsible for any 
maintenance. 
 
Virginia Peterson, 19 Harbour Dr. S, advised that every resident in Ridge Harbour Estates 
would have a different opinion on what they would like to see installed in the island.  She 
suggested that the Town take control of the project and do what they deem necessary.   
 
 
 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE TOWN COMMISSION HELD ON MARCH 2, 1998 

 5

Mayor Stamos advised that at the August 3, 1992 Regular Meeting, he had commented, 
as a concerned resident at the time, that he felt if the plants died due to a lack of water 
and maintenance by the Town, the Town should replace the plants.  He added that more 
important than the island, the walls need attention. 
 
Comm Kaleel stated that the residents of Ridge Harbour Estates need to be treated the 
same as the residents of Inlet Cay.  He asked if trimming and grooming the island would 
satisfy the residents until a plan has been devised for the Town.  Mr. Bower advised that 
when the shrubs get overgrown to the point where they are now, they become woody and 
impossible to trim down. 
 
Cindy Martel, 46 Harbour Dr. S, advised that she had nearly been hit twice while near the 
island because she could not be seen through the overgrowth. 
 
Comm Kaleel advised that the issue is what the Town Commission can do to alleviate the 
immediate problem, and then add the issue into the Focus 2000 plans for correction 
Townwide in the future.  He explained that receiving something from the Public Sector is 
difficult and takes time, so bulldozing the area will necessitate it being that way for quite 
a while.  He advised that he would not vote now on any plans that are not part of any 
overall plan.  He stated that the Commission would have to communicate with the 
County to plan what to do with the walls.   
 
Mayor Stamos read the petition that was submitted by residents of Ridge Harbour 
Estates.  The petition contained twenty-six signatures and requested immediate attention 
to the island and walls near the entrance of Ridge Harbour Estates. 
 
Mr. Ratner advised that without proper maintenance and a budget for such, the issue is 
not worth discussing. 
 
Comm O’Hare advised that the Town Commission needs to focus on this issue.  He 
reminded the residents that $700,000 worth of landscaping is being installed by DOT in 
conjunction with the Ocean Ave. bridge.  He advised that once the project is completed 
the Town will be responsible for maintenance and financially obligated to replace any 
plantings that die due to improper maintenance.  He commented that the Town 
Commission will have to decide whether they wish for the Town to maintain its low tax 
rates or increase them to budget for all this maintenance which is being discussed. 
 
Comm Kaleel asked what can be done now to beautify the island.  Mr. Lower advised 
that he would work with the landscape architect to see what can be done for the short 
term.  Comm Kaleel suggested that the Town Manager be kept informed so that the Town 
would be able to help with the maintenance.  Mr. Lower agreed. 
 
Wanda Phillips, 15 Harbour Dr S, questioned who will decide what will be placed in the 
island.  Mayor Stamos advised that if the residents of the neighborhood fund the project, 
they will decide what is planted. 
 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE TOWN COMMISSION HELD ON MARCH 2, 1998 

 6

The Town Commission made no decisions for any action to be taken regarding the island 
planting area, but did concur that the County be contacted regarding the walls. 
 

C. Request to Trim Seagrapes across from 5 Beachway North – 
Bernard Turner representing Richard Lucibella 

 
Mr. Turner explained that the seagrapes in the area were not tall enough to be windowed 
and advised that they were only requesting to trim 40% to 3’ for a view of the dune. 
 
Comm O’Hare stated that he saw no problem with trimming the seagrapes.  He advised 
that the plans show an existing footpath which he felt should be planted over.  Atty 
Nicoletti stated that he believed Comm O’Hare to have a good point, as it is not a 
footpath that has been approved by the Town Commission.  Mr. Turner explained that the 
footpath is not used with the owner’s approval and that he tried to indicate on his plans  
the actual layout. 
 
Comm O’Hare stated that he would only approve the project if they reapplied with plans 
to replant the pathway.  Mr. Turner asked for clarification that any resident who wants 
relief would have to also correct the problem of a pre-existing footpath. 
 
Mr. Lucibella explained that the National Wildlife Federation is the owner of the 
property.  He advised that the Town has been unable to get them to clean up the property 
and that it has taken him two years to receive their permission to trim on the property.  
He advised that he did not want to go back to them on the issue of a footpath as it, again, 
would be very time consuming. 
 
Comm Kaleel clarified that the path was only a mixture of dirt and sand.  He also asked if 
Mr. Lucibella would be required to put in a boardwalk or replant the footpath in order for 
seagrape trimming to be approved. 
 
Mr. Lucibella advised that he was making this request for the benefit of everyone who 
walks down Old Ocean Blvd.  He advised that he would contact the National Wildlife 
Federation regarding the purchase of the land to install a walkover if that is what it would 
take to get this approved. 
 
Comm Kaleel questioned if the trimming affects the dune in any way to which Comm 
Aaskov replied that it does not. 
 
Atty Nicoletti advised that the Town Commission could include in their motion that they 
are not ratifying the footpath.   
 
Mr. Lucibella suggested that he plant sea oats on the path to which Mayor Stamos 
advised that would be acceptable. 
 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE TOWN COMMISSION HELD ON MARCH 2, 1998 

 7

Comm O’Hare advised that the Commission needed to be fair to other applicants in their 
treatment of this application adding that other residents were required to adhere to the 
code. 
 
Comm O’Hare moved to approve the request with the modification of the restoration of 
the footpath with sea oats to be planted within thirty days of the sea grape trimming, 
seconded by Comm Bridges. 
 
Earl Jones, 14 Sailfish Lane, advised that he did not want an orange barrel and tape in 
front of the footpath to prohibit anyone from using it while the sea oats are growing in. 
 
Comm O’Hare requested that Mr. Lucibella also replace any plantings on the footpath 
that may die as well as maintain the area that is being trimmed.  Mr. Lucibella disagreed 
with being responsible for maintaining an area for use by a third party.  There was no 
further discussion on Mr. Lucibella’s responsibilities. 
 
Roll call was made on Comm O’Hare’s motion. 
 
Motion carried – yea 5. 
 

D. Request to Accept the Corrected Legal Description for all Prior 
Approvals Granted by the Town – Ocean Harbour Estates at Ocean 
Ridge 

 
Wenford Hood, Property Acquisition Specialist, advised the Commission that he was 
requesting a correction of an error in the title policy. 
 
Peter Sachs, of Sachs, Sax, and Klein, P.A., advised that when having the deeds recorded, 
an error was discovered.  He indicated that a small strip of submerged land owned by 
FIND was included in the legal description which should not have been.  He advised that 
the land is not needed for their community to continue as planned. 
 
Comm Kaleel moved to accept the corrected legal description for all prior approvals 
granted by the Town, seconded by Comm Bridges. 
 
Motion carried – yea 5. 
 
VII. Commission Action 

A. Ordinances 
1. No. 505; Amending Chapter 26 of the Code of Ordinances 

of the Town of Ocean Ridge (Land Development Code) by 
Adding a New Article XVII Entitled Telecommunications; 
Providing Definitions; Providing for Permitted Uses, 
Accessory Uses, and Special Exception Uses; Providing for 
Permits and Lease Agreements; Providing for a Violation 
hereof (2nd Reading and Adoption) 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE TOWN COMMISSION HELD ON MARCH 2, 1998 

 8

 
Comm Aaskov moved to approve Ordinance No. 505, seconded by Comm Bridges. 
 
Christina D’Angelo, lot near the corner of Anna and N Ocean Blvd., asked for a 
description of the ordinance.  Atty Nicoletti explained that it was a telecommunications 
ordinance designed to protect the Town.  He advised that it gives clear preference for any 
towers to be placed, first, on Town Hall property and second, on other public property.  
He stated that it is a fairly stringent code that is patterned after a Palm Beach County 
ordinance. 
 
Lillian Ratner questioned if the Town could be mandated to accept a tower to which Atty 
Nicoletti advised that they could. 
 
Roll call was made on Comm Aaskov’s motion. 
 
Motion carried – yea 5. 
 

B. Resolutions 
1. No. 98-07; Electing a Mayor  

 
Mayor Stamos explained that every March the Town Commission selects a Mayor for the 
coming year. 
 
Comm O’Hare moved that Comm Kaleel be elected as Mayor.  Comm O’Hare stated that 
he believed Comm Kaleel to be the one who could pull the Town Commission back 
together as needed. 
 
Comm Bridges nominated Comm Aaskov for Mayor.  Comm Bridges advised that she 
has worked hard for the Town and mentioned the newspaper that she distributes to the 
residents. 
 
Mayor Stamos seconded Comm O’Hare’s motion. 
 
Atty Nicoletti advised that the decision can not be made by a motion when there are two 
nominations although the Town Commission still had to answer Comm O’Hare’s motion. 
 
Roll call was made on Comm O’Hare’s motion. 
 
Motion failed – yea 2 (O’Hare, Stamos) 
    nay 3 (Aaskov, Bridges, Kaleel) 
 
Comm Kaleel advised that he would prefer the selection be done by ballot. 
 
Town Clerk Hancsak distributed and then counted the ballots. 
 
Comm Kaleel received three votes and Comm Aaskov received two votes. 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE TOWN COMMISSION HELD ON MARCH 2, 1998 

 9

 
Town Clerk Hancsak read Resolution No. 98-07 in its entirety. 
 
Comm O’Hare questioned the language in the ordinance which states that “a Mayor be 
selected from among its members by the Town Commission if there were no candidates 
for such office.” 
 
Comm O’Hare moved to adopt Resolution No. 98-07 as read omitting the language “if 
there were no candidates for such office,” seconded by Mayor Stamos. 
 
Motion carried – yea 5. 
 
Mayor Kaleel thanked the Commissioners for their vote of confidence.  He stated that 
there are many issues before the Town which will be challenging and that the 
Commission needs planning, direction, and unity.  He thanked George Stamos for his 
service as Mayor and doing the job as best as he could in the time that he was Mayor. 
 

2. No. 98-08; Electing a Vice Mayor  
 
Comm Bridges nominated Comm Aaskov for Vice Mayor, seconded by Comm O’Hare.  
There were no other nominations. 
 
Town Clerk Hancsak read Resolution No. 98-08 in its entirety. 
 
Comm Stamos moved to approve Resolution No. 98-08 as read, seconded by Comm 
Bridges. 
 
Motion carried – yea 5. 
 
Mayor Kaleel stated that he agreed with Comm Bridges regarding the amount of work 
and dedication Comm Aaskov has given the Town. 
 

3. No. 98-09; Designating Depositories for Town Funds 
 
Town Clerk Hancsak read Resolution No. 98-09. 
 
Comm Stamos moved to approve Resolution No. 98-09, seconded by Comm Aaskov. 
 
Motion carried – yea 5. 
 

C. Appointments to Town Boards 
 
Town Clerk Hancsak advised that there are three regular appointments open for the 
Planning and Zoning Commission.  She advised that Ward Northrup and Bud Ford had 
indicated their desire to remain on the Commission and that Maureen Hamilton had 
indicated that she did not wish to remain.  She advised that of the alternates, Richard 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE TOWN COMMISSION HELD ON MARCH 2, 1998 

 10

Lucibella had advised that he would like to remain and move to a regular member if the 
Town Commission desired while Neil Hamilton advised that he no longer wanted to 
serve. 
 
Comm O’Hare moved to appoint Richard Lucibella, Ward Northrup, and Bud Ford as 
regular members of the Planning and Zoning Commission, seconded by Comm Stamos. 
 
Motion carried – yea 5. 
 
Town Clerk Hancsak advised that she had spoken with Peggy Smith regarding one of the 
vacant alternate positions and that Mrs. Smith had indicated that she would like to serve. 
 
Comm Bridges moved that Peggy Smith be appointed as an alternate to the Planning and 
Zoning Commission, seconded by Comm Stamos. 
 
Motion carried – yea 5. 
 
The Town Commission asked if there was any resident present who would like to 
volunteer for the remaining alternate position. 
 
Charlotte Carle advised that she would be willing to serve if her active real estate license 
did not prohibit it to which Atty Nicoletti replied that it would not be a conflict. 
 
Christine D’Angelo questioned what the position would entail.  Atty Nicoletti explained 
that an alternate to the Planning and Zoning Commission would be expected to attend all 
of the meetings and would only vote when a regular member is unable to attend.  Mrs. 
D’Angelo advised that she would also be willing to serve on the Planning and Zoning 
Commission.  It was determined that Mrs. D’Angelo would not be able to serve; 
however, as she is not yet a resident of the Town.   
 
Comm Bridges moved to appoint Charlotte Carle as an alternate to the Planning and 
Zoning Commission, seconded by Comm Stamos. 
 
Motion carried – yea 5. 
 
Town Clerk Hancsak advised that Luis Vinas and Barbara Souther have expressed their 
willingness to remain as regular and alternate members of the Board of Adjustment; 
respectively, but that Pat Conway has declined to serve again as an alternate. 
 
Comm Stamos moved that Luis Vinas be appointed as a regular member and Barbara 
Souther as an alternate member to the Board of Adjustment, seconded by Comm Bridges. 
 
Motion carried – yea 5. 
 
Victor Martel advised that he would be willing to serve as an alternate member to the 
Board of Adjustment. 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE TOWN COMMISSION HELD ON MARCH 2, 1998 

 11

 
Comm O’Hare moved that Victor Martel be appointed as an alternate member of the 
Board of Adjustment, seconded by Comm Stamos. 
 
Motion carried – yea 5. 
 

D. Discuss Corrine Street Dune Right-Of-Way 
 
Town Manager Lanker advised that the right-of-way had been temporarily closed the 
previous week because the dune in that area was being severely damaged.  He stated that 
it was closed until the Town Commission decided how to handle the situation. 
 
Comm Stamos advised that he had received calls regarding the closure and stated that the 
issue needs to be addressed.  He stated that the Town needs to decide whether they will 
install a permanent beach access there or close what is there now. 
 
Comm Bridges advised that a number a private residences were permitted to install 
walkovers and that there are many residents who wish to use this as a public access.  He 
suggested that the Town Commission discuss placing a permanent walkover at this 
location.  Comm Aaskov agreed and advised that it should maintained by the Town.  
Comm O’Hare advised that there are two existing walkovers close by at Porter and Anna 
St..  He stated that placing walkovers at every opportunity would send the wrong message 
to the residents. 
 
Comm Stamos questioned the cost of installing a new walkover.  Town Manager Lanker 
advised that he had received an estimate from Mr. Turner of an amount not to exceed 
$6,000 which would include the stairway and the low on the ground walkway.   
 
Mayor Kaleel suggested that since the issue had been deferred to the Planning and 
Zoning Commission, the Town Commission wait for their opinion before making any 
decisions. 
 
Atty Nicoletti advised that the Town Commission would have to make a decision on 
whether or not the path should remain closed off as it is now.  Comm Stamos questioned 
the Town’s liability if a resident were using the right-of-way while the Town had closed 
it off.  Atty Nicoletti explained that there would be no liability if the Town Commission 
had decided to close it.   
 
Dan Dolan, 6060 N Ocean Blvd., advised that he uses this public access and was 
dismayed at its summary closure. He suggested that the Town Commission address the 
issue of public access and take action. 
 
Peter Bardach, 6017 Old Ocean Blvd, advised that for the ten years he has lived in Ocean 
Ridge, he had free access to the beach.  He commented that it was a strange coincidence 
that their walkover was closed off after a neighbor, who disagreed with its use, was able 
to build a private one.  He suggested that the Town Commission open the footpath until a 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE TOWN COMMISSION HELD ON MARCH 2, 1998 

 12

decision can be made about its future adding that the residents who use it would not 
destroy any foliage. 
 
Regarding the barrel and tape currently restricting access, Earl Jones advised that the 
residents should not have to look at something resembling a crime scene any longer than 
necessary. 
 
Chris Currie, 27 Tropical Dr., commented that vegetation is destroyed not only under 
walkovers, but in the area adjacent to it.  He cited the path at the end of Tropical Dr. 
which used to go straight across to the beach and has now moved further to the south 
with foliage overtaking the old path. 
 
Director Hillery advised that when he was on the dune during some Australian Pine 
removal, he became aware of the situation of the Corrine St. right-of-way.  He stated that 
someone had cut through and destroyed the seagrapes.  He advised that the dune is also 
being damaged due to people coming off the approximate 12’ drop off to the beach at the 
end of the path.  He apologized for the barrel and tape citing that it was the best way he 
knew to prohibit people from continuing to use the path. 
 
Phyllis Dolan, 6060 N Ocean Blvd., commented that it is obvious that many residents 
wish to use this right of way. 
 
Betty Bingham advised that if the Town decides to keep the path, it must look at how to 
make it safe with the 12’ drop.  She added that the residents can use the two nearby 
crossovers which they must have been using before if they were not crossing on private 
property. 
 
Dr. Martel commented that if the residents had taken it upon themselves to cut a path 
through the vegetation, the path should be closed to show that it will not be allowed. 
 
Mr. Dolan suggested that the seagrapes were cut when the Australian Pines were being 
removed to which both Director Hillery and Town Manager Lanker replied that it was 
not. 
 
Comm Stamos moved that the right-of-way be reopened and monitored by the 
Department of Public Safety to decide if closure may again be necessary due to unusual 
activity or damage, seconded by Comm Aaskov. 
 
Comm Aaskov questioned the liability to the Town if someone gets injured due to the 
drop off to the beach to which Atty Nicoletti advised that if it is truly 12’, he would not 
recommend opening it.  Comm Aaskov suggested that a sign be placed near the path 
advising to use at own risk. 
 
Comm O’Hare stated that the Town Commission needs to honor its code and also wait 
for the opinion of the Planning and Zoning Commission.  He suggested that a barrier of 
some kind be left there. 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE TOWN COMMISSION HELD ON MARCH 2, 1998 

 13

 
Comm Bridges disagreed citing that the path has been there for a long time and that 
people have the right to use it.  He stated that he felt the beach renourishment will help 
the situation.  He advised that he was concerned over the liability issue, but he felt the 
residents had a right to use it. 
 
Comm O’Hare clarified that Director Hillery would close the path again if he observed 
any further damage. 
 
Roll call was taken on Comm Stamos’ motion. 
 
Motion carried – yea 3 (Aaskov, Bridges, Stamos) 
       nay 2 (O’Hare, Kaleel) 
 
Comm O’Hare questioned if the Town Commission wanted to take any additional 
measures to protect rights-of-way for the protection of the dune.  Comm Kaleel advised 
that he felt the consensus of the Town Commission was to keep the status quo until 
recommendations are received by the Planning and Zoning Commission.  He added that 
Director Hillery and Town Manager Lanker will be observing the rights-of-way for 
further damage until that time. 
 

E. Items By Commissioners 
1. Discuss Format of Consent Agenda – Comm Bridges 

 
Comm Bridges suggested that the Town Commission reevaluate the consent agenda so 
that the public may have more input.  Mayor Kaleel advised that he would like to discuss 
the meetings regarding how to make more efficient use of time while respecting the 
public’s right to know.  The Town Commission agreed to allow Mayor Kaleel to discuss 
the issue with the Town Atty. 
 

2. Discuss Ordinance for Authorizing Unbudgeted Funds – 
Comm Bridges 

 
Comm Bridges advised that the Town Commission needs to prepare a format and policy 
to limit unbudgeted expenditures to regular Town Commission meetings as suggested by 
Earl Jones at a previous meeting.   
 
Comm Aaskov commented that the Town Commission needs to consider this policy as an 
emergency may arise where funding can not wait until the next regular meeting.  She 
stated that she understood the idea behind Mr. Jones’ suggestion and added that the 
Commission must appear that they are not trying to approve items at weekday morning 
meetings without the public’s knowledge. 
 
Comm O’Hare advised that it would be good to have this policy adding that possibly it 
could be limited to evening meetings. 
 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE TOWN COMMISSION HELD ON MARCH 2, 1998 

 14

Mayor Kaleel agreed with all the comments and requested that the Town Atty draft an 
ordinance for review by the Town Commission. 
 

3. Discuss Focus 2000 Meeting Date - Mayor Kaleel 
 
Mayor Kaleel advised that May 8th had been chosen for the meeting date of the Focus 
2000 group.  He advised that there would be 35 participants (5 Town Commission 
members, 5 Planning and Zoning Commission members, 5 Board of Adjustment 
members, 2 residents each chosen by the Town Commissioners, and 10 others chosen by 
the Focus 2000 Committee).  He explained that the 35 participants would be divided in 
groups of seven.  He added that the agenda and topics would not be distributed until the 
day of the meeting so that no resident will enter the meeting with preconceived ideas on 
any topic. 
 
Mayor Kaleel advised that he was requesting a maximum of $2,500.  He explained that 
he had contacted Bethesda to use their facilities.  He added that the meeting will produce 
a Mission Statement and a set of priorities for the Town.  He advised that there will be 
facilitators present to guide them. 
 
Comm Aaskov moved that an amount not to exceed $2,500 from the contingency account 
be approved for this project adding that the Town Commission owed a debt of gratitude 
to Mayor Kaleel for all the time and effort he has put into this project.  Comm O’Hare 
seconded Comm Aaskov’s motion. 
 
Comm Bridges questioned if someone from the County should speak who has an overall 
picture of the problems that the Town may face in the future.  Mayor Kaleel advised that 
he had considered that option and decided that since it is a citizen’s forum, outsiders 
should not influence it.  He explained that a packet of information will be distributed to 
the participants which outlines what the Town does and does not control. 
 
Comm Bridges questioned discussion of items that may be mandated by the State or 
County.  Mayor Kaleel encouraged Comm Bridges to make that his priority for the 
meeting where they would see if that is also the priority of other residents.   
 
Comm O’Hare questioned if the alternate members of the P&Z and BOA were invited as 
participants to which Mayor Kaleel advised that they were not.  Comm O’Hare explained 
that they could attend the meeting, as it is public, but not participate in the discussions.  
Mayor Kaleel advised that he anticipated fifty or sixty residents present for the event. 
 
Mayor Kaleel advised that he would need two names of participants from the 
Commissioners by March 9th. 
 
Roll call was made on Comm Aaskov’s motion. 
 
Motion carried – yea 5. 
 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE TOWN COMMISSION HELD ON MARCH 2, 1998 

 15

4. Discuss Removal of Exotics from Dune – Comm O’Hare 
 
Comm O’Hare advised that no provision has been made for those residents who simply 
want to pull weeds or remove exotics from the dune without coming before the Town 
Commission with a formal plan.  He requested that an ordinance be drafted which would 
allow relief for these individuals. 
 
Comm Aaskov advised that a good example of the need for this ordinance would be the  
area at the end of Adams which has small Australian Pines which need to be removed 
before they become problems. 
 
The Town Commission concurred to have the Town Atty draft an ordinance for this. 
 

5. Discuss Resolution Format – Comm O’Hare 
 
Comm O’Hare advised that when the formal vote is placed in the resolution, the value 
could be diminished if it is a non-unanimous vote.   
 
Atty Nicoletti advised that it was not a legal requirement that the vote be displayed on a 
resolution, but suggested that the vote be kept on ordinances.  Comms Aaskov and 
Bridges agreed with removing the vote from resolutions, but not ordinances. 
 
Mayor Kaleel advised that when the Town forwards a resolution that does not show the 
full faith of the Town, it might be a disservice to show the vote as it might send a mixed 
message. 
 
Comm O’Hare moved that votes not be shown on a formal resolution, seconded by 
Comm Aaskov. 
 
Motion carried – yea 5. 
 

6. Discuss Drainage Problems – Comm O’Hare 
 
Comm O’Hare advised that following the last regular meeting, there was a tremendous 
drainage problem on Tropical.  He suggested the Town take advantage of the availability 
of lots for purchase for stormwater runoff.  He advised that this could be a possible topic 
for the Focus 2000 meeting. 
 
Comm Bridges agreed stating that the lot at Beachway could also be used for this 
purpose. 
 
The Town Commission concurred to defer the topic until the Focus 2000 meeting. 
 
 
 
 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE TOWN COMMISSION HELD ON MARCH 2, 1998 

 16

7. Discuss Florida League of Cities RE:  Funding of 
Technical Centers – Comm Stamos 

 
Comm Stamos suggested that everyone consider this issue and be careful to protect these 
facilities.  He advised that the decisions were being made for solely economic reasons. 
 
Mayor Kaleel mentioned that the Town had already passed a resolution supporting this 
issue. 
 

8. Discuss PBSO Vehicle Program – Comm Stamos 
 
Comm Stamos advised that Director Hillery had submitted a good report on the issue and 
that he will continue with his research.  Mayor Kaleel suggested that the item be deferred 
until more information is available. 
 

9. Discuss Plantings at Beachway and Old Ocean Blvd. – 
Comm Aaskov 

 
Comm Aaskov advised that Rob Reuse would like to do some cleaning and trimming of 
the area and also install grass and sprinklers around the edge.  She added that he would 
also like to put rope through the wooden posts which are there now. 
 
Comm Aaskov moved that Mr. Reuse be allowed to clean and trim, install grass, 
sprinklers, and rope for the wooden posts at Beachway and Old Ocean Blvd., seconded 
by Comm Bridges. 
 
Comm O’Hare advised that he was pleased that a resident wants to help and suggested 
that the Garden Club and/or Beautification Task Force be asked before permission is 
granted to the resident. 
 
Comm Stamos advised that he would like guidelines and suggested that the Garden Club 
give these recommendations. 
 
Mayor Kaleel suggested that Mr. Reuse bring a plan to the Town Commission.  Comm 
Stamos suggested to amend the motion to include a plan submitted by Mr. Reuse.  Comm 
Aaskov moved to amend the motion as suggested.  Comm Bridges seconded the amended 
motion. 
 
Mayor Kaleel suggested that the plan be given to Jerry Lower and Town Manager Lanker 
for their opinions before the next meeting. 
 
Roll call was made on Comm Aaskov’s motion. 
 
Motion carried – yea 5. 
 
 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE TOWN COMMISSION HELD ON MARCH 2, 1998 

 17

VIII. Public Comment 
 
Dr. Warter, 5929 N Ocean Blvd., urged the Town Commission to take action regarding 
the traffic on Old Ocean Blvd.  He advised that 25MPH is too high for the small amount 
of traffic on that road. 
 
 
Tom Horton, 31 Coconut, advised that he is a volunteer with the sea turtle patrol.  He 
stated that he is concerned over turtles becoming trapped in the beach area behind 6275 N 
Ocean Blvd.  He requested that someone from the Town speak to the property owner. 
 
Comm Stamos urged Mr. Horton to attend the Inlet Committee Meeting to give his 
opinion. 
 
Comm O’Hare advised that he had spoken to Bob Klinger, DERM, who advised him that 
he did not believe there would be a problem with turtles being trapped, but would report 
back with more information. 
 
 
Earl Jones stated that he believed a resolution regarding the immediate posting of a 
permit was being prepared for this meeting as a result of the February 13, 1998 meeting.  
He questioned why it was not on the agenda.  Atty Nicoletti explained that it was not 
possible because of the work involved in the Pace settlement and assured Mr. Jones that it 
would be on the agenda at the next regular meeting. 
 
 
Mike Phillips, 6590 N Ocean Blvd., advised that he fully supports the idea of the Focus 
2000, but that the snowbirds may find it difficult to attend in May.  He requested that 
information and topics be distributed to those who can not attend.  Mayor Kaleel advised 
that a Mission Statement and goals will be available after the meeting. 
 
 
Peggy Smith advised that her neighbor had left the meeting, but had wanted to bring the 
drainage problem on Inlet Cay, particularly by 9 Inlet Cay, to the Town Commission’s 
attention.  Town Manager Lanker advised that the company that makes the red valve 
currently in place there is making a replacement. 
 
Comm Stamos mentioned the severe flooding problem on Harbour Dr S.  Mayor Kaleel 
suggested that Town Manager Lanker research the flooding situations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE TOWN COMMISSION HELD ON MARCH 2, 1998 

 18

IX. Adjournment 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 10:00 PM. 
 
 
 
       ___________________________ 
       Mayor Kaleel 
 
 
       ___________________________ 
       Comm Aaskov 
 
 
       ___________________________ 
       Comm Bridges 
Attest By: 
 
       ___________________________ 
       Comm O’Hare 
________________________ 
Town Clerk  
       ___________________________ 
       Comm Stamos 
 


